Kingsley Area School Kingsley 15) 1969-70

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ARTICLE I.	PREAMBLE
ARTICLE II.	RECOGNITION
ARTICLE III.	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS
ARTICLE IV.	TEACHER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
ARTICLE V.	TEACHING CONDITIONS
ARTICLE VI.	INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS9.
ARTICLE VII.	LEAVES
M.E.A. 16 KENDMLE LANS., M.:	D. Military Leave
48824	

RECEIVED/

NOV 26 1969

OFFICE OF PROFESSIONAL NEGOTIATIONS

1/1/61-7/1/ho

ARTICLE	VIII.	PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION
ARTICLE	IX.	PROFESSIONAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES
ARTICLE	X.	DISCIPLINARY ACTION
ARTICLE	XI.	NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES
ARTICLE	XII.	AGREEMENT CONTRARY TO LAW AND MATTERS CONTRARY TO AGREEMENT
ARTICLE	XIII.	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS17.
ARTICLE	XIV.	DEFINITIONS

ROFESSIONAL NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT between
The School District of Kingsley and
Kingsley Education Association

ARTICLE I. PREAMBLE

- A. WHEREAS The Board of Education of the Kingsley Area School District (hereinafter referred to as the Board) and the Kingsley Education Association (hereinafter referred to as the Association) recognize and declare that the implementation, development, and operation of a high-quality instructional program for the students of this school district is their mutual goal and responsibility, and that the character of such education depends upon the quality and morale of the teaching service, and
- B. WHEREAS this common high purpose may best be achieved by close consultation, mutual respect, and understanding between the Board and the Association, and
- C. WHEREAS the Association recognizes that the Board under law, has the final responsibility for establishing policies for the district, and
- D. WHEREAS the Board recognizes that teaching is a profession and the skills, knowledge, and creative capacities of teachers contribute greatly toward the goal of high-quality schools for the district, and
- E. WHEREAS the laws of the State of Michigan authorize public employees and public employers to enter collective negotiation agreements concerning rates of pay, hours of employment and working conditions.
- F. WHEREAS the Board did recognize the Association, by formal resolution, in March, 1965, as the choice of a majority of the employees covered by this agreement, as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective negotiations with the Board in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other terms and conditions of employment, and
- G. WHEREAS the parties, following deliberate professional negotiations have reached certain understanding, and
- H. WHEREAS the Board and the Association desire to incorporate such understandings into a written collective negotiations agreement in the belief that such action is in the best in-

terest of the students attending school therein, the teachers represented by the Association, and the residents of the Kingsley Area School District,

I. NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the following covenants the Association and the Board hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION

A. Bargaining Agent

The Board recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative of all the certificated personnel exclusive of supervisory personnel employed or to be employed by the Board, which hereby designates the Association to be such by its representatives.

ARTICLE III ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- A. The Board agrees to recognize and observe all of the rights given the Association pursuant to Act 379 of 1965, and all other applicable laws.
- B. The Board and the Association recognize the right of either party to invoke the assistance of the State Labor Mediation Board or a mediator from such public agency.
- C. Prospective teachers shall have the right to confer with the Association prior to their signing a contract. The Names of Association representatives to contact will be supplied to the hiring agent by the Association and made available to prospective teachers through the hiring agent.
- D. The Association has the right to consult with the Board and/ or administrative representatives during the planning and revision state of new or modified construction programs or revisions of educational policies which are proposed or under consideration.
- E. Payroll Deductions. Individuals may assign and deliver to the Board an assignment authorizing deduction of membership dues or assessments of the Association. The deduction of membership dues shall be made from the second paycheck each month for ten (10) months beginning in September ending in June of each year.
- F. The Board shall also make payroll deductions upon written authorization from teachers for annuities, charitable donations credit union, savings bonds, or any other plan or programs jointly approved by the Association and the Board.

ARTICLE IV. TEACHER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Personal and Professional Life

- 1. The Association and the teachers recognize that the basic duty of each teacher is to use his skill as a teacher in the most effective and proper manner to assure the highest possible quality of education in the Kingsley Area School.
- 2. Good teaching extends beyond classroom walls and scheduled hours. Teaching is a profession which requires, among other things, the devotion of extra time to selfimprovement and out-of-school time for the preparation of projects, lesson plans, grading of papers, and counseling parents.

- 3. The Association and the teachers recognize that teaching is a profession which requires the highest standards of personal conduct from its members. The Association and the teachers further recognize the Code of Ethics of the Michigan Education Association as the basic standard of professional conduct.
- 4. In order to insure continued improvement of the education process in the Kingsley Area School, the Association and the teachers will assist in the study, revision, updating, and amending of school curriculum.
- 5. The Association and the teachers recognize their responsibility to keep themselves informed concerning school programs, and to interpret the school and its program to the community to the best of their ability.
- 6. The Association and the teachers recognize their obligation to continue to lend their skill and knowledge in the form of recommendations for textbook selections, teaching materials, and plans for new or renovated buildings.
- B. Vacancies; Promotions, Reassignments and Transfers
 - 1. The Superintendent will give written notice to the president of the Association or his designee whenever vacancies occur or when a new professional position is to be created. The Association shall be responsible for the appropriate posting of said notice.
 - 2. Teachers who desire to apply for such vacant positions shall file their application in writing with the Superintendent. The Superintendent will acknowledge such applications in writing. It is recognized that the right of selection of personnel to fill said position remains entirely within the discretion of the Board.
 - 3. Teachers who desire a transfer or change of assignment may make their desires known on the annual questionnaire or by letter to the Superintendent of Schools. Such requests will be acknowledged in writing and must be renewed each year.
 - In honoring requests for transfers the instructional requirements and the best interest of pupils and the school system will be considered.
 - 4. Teachers will be informed by the Superintendent prior to involuntary transfers or assignment within the system, and the reasons for such transfer will be given.

5. Teachers shall be notified in writing of their tentative programs for the coming year, including the school to which they will be assigned, grade, subjects they will teach, and any special or unusual assignments which have been made. The notice will be given as soon as practical, and under normal circumstances not later than the last Friday in May of the current school year.

C. Board Support of Teachers

- 1. Teachers are responsible for the control and discipline of students in the classroom or in such places or at such times as the students may be under the jurisdiction of the teacher. Any assault by a child upon a teacher shall be promptly reported to the teacher's immediate supervisor. The Board recognizes its responsibility to give reasonable support and assistance to all teachers with respect to control and discipline.
- Teachers will be notified without delay of complaints made against them by parents. The teacher will be granted an opportunity to answer such complaints either in conference or in writing at the discretion of the principal.
- 3. A teacher may exclude a pupil for one class period when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of misbehavior, or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the student in the classroom intolerable. In such cases the teacher will furnish the student with a report of misconduct to be presented to the principal at the time of exclusion.

D. Teacher Evaluations

BOARD STATEMENT: Evaluation of the effectiveness of teaching is a basic if not the most important function of administration. The MEA has referred to teacher evaluation as "The Key to Quality Personnel".

Bvaluating teacher competency is not an easy task. It requires mutual understanding, effective tools and techniques, skill and cooperation.

Effective evaluation is based upon well-understood policies and criteria of performance developed through cooperative participation of teachers, administrators, and the Board of Education.

1. The evaluation of all teachers is the responsibility

of the administration.

- Teacher evaluations shall be made regularly in writing by the principal.
- Teacher evaluations shall be made with the full knowledge and cooperation of the teacher and shall be signed by the teacher.

E. Academic Freedom

The parties seek to educate young people in the democratic tradition, to foster a recognition of individual freedom and social responsibility, to inspire meaningful awareness of and respect for the Constitution and the Bill of Rights, and to instill appreciation of the values of individual personality. It is recognized that these democratic values can best be transmitted in an atmosphere in which academic freedom for teacher and student is encouraged.

F. Retirement

Employees are required to retire at age sixty-five (65). Extensions of employment may be granted annually up to age seventy (70) when recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the Board.

Employees who reach the established retirement age during a contractual period shall be permitted to complete the contract.

G. Release Time

One hour of release time shall be provided for the purpose of a two-hour in-vervice training program. The second hour shall be given by the teachers. These meetings shall be called by the building principals to take place on the third Wednesday of each six-week marking period.

H. Review of Personal File

Each teacher shall have the right, upon request, and in the presence of a member of the administration to review the contents of his personal file. A representative of the Association may at the teacher's request, accompany the teacher in this review. Each teacher's personal file shall contain the following minimum items of information.

a. Annual TB report and required medical information.

- b. All the teacher's evaluation reports.
- c. Copies of annual contracts.
- d. Copy of teaching certificate.
- e. Tenure recommendation.

I. Substitute Teachers

- 1. A teacher shall notify his principal at the earliest possible time after determining that he will not be able to report for duty. Notification on the previous day is highly desirable. It shall then be the responsibility of the administration to arrange for a qualified substitute teacher.
- Teachers will be used to cover classes only in cases of emergency.
- 3. Substitute salaries, per diem. "First 10 school days in the same position at \$25.00 per diem and \$33.00 per teaching day thereafter, provided the first 10 days are consecutive."
- 4. After ten days at one assignment a substitute teacher shall be considered a continuing substitute and may be offered a contract.
- If a substitute teacher is called he shall be paid for the amount of time specified at the time he is called.

J. Lesson Plans

It is the teachers responsibility to provide adequate and complete plans for the use of the substitute. Lesson plans for each succeeding week shall be on the teachers desk or available thru the building principal not later than Friday before the succeeding week.

ARTICLE V TEACHING CONDITIONS

A. Calendar

The calendar for the 1969-70 school year is attached hereto as appendix C, with the express understanding that it is subject to modification at the discretion of the Board in order to provide the one hundred-eighty (180) days of classroom instruction as required by law.

B. Working Hours

- 1. Teachers shall be at their teaching stations fifteen (15) minutes prior to the start of the school day as defined for the school. Teachers will remain in the building not less than 15 minutes after dismissal of the students unless other arrangements are made with their immediate supervisor. When conferences are scheduled with parents or persons interested in the welfare of the child, teachers shall remain until the conference has been completed. Teachers may not be required to hold said conference when one (1) days advance notice has not been given.
- 2. A teacher shall be expected to attend professional staff meetings when called by the principal. A teacher may place appropriate educationally related items on the agenda for the meeting. The agenda for meetings should be presented to the teacher at least one day in advance of the meeting.
- 3. All teachers shall be scheduled for a duty-free midday period of at least thirty (30) minutes.

C. Class Size

The Board and the Association recognize that the pupilteacher ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program. The parties agree that class size should be adjusted when such action will improve the instructional program.

D. Teacher Assignments

- 1. Since pupils are entitled to be taught by teachers who are working within their area of competence, teachers shall not be assigned, except temporarily and for good cause, outside the scope of their teaching certification or their major or minor field of study.
- All senior and junior high school teachers shall have at least one unassigned period per day for the purpose of preparing lessons, student conferences, parent conferences, etc.

E. Non-Teaching Duties

The Board and the Association acknowledge that a teacher's primary responsibility is to teach, and that his energies should be utilized to this end. It is agreed that teachers will be relieved of nonteaching duties to the extent possible and practical through the use of non-teaching personnel to

perform clerical-type tasks.

F. Teaching Facilities, Equipment and Supplies

- 1. Both parties recognize that the availability of optimum school facilities, equipment and supplies for both student and teacher are necessary to insure the high quality of education that is the common goal of the Association and the Board. The Board recognizes:
 - a. That appropriate texts, instructional aids and supplies are the tools of the teaching profession. The parties will confer at least one time each semester for the purpose of improving the selection and use of such educational tools. The Board undertakes promptly to act upon all joint recommendations thereon made by its representative and the Association.
 - b. That sufficient library reference facilities, maps and globes, laboratory equipment, audio-visual equipment, art supplies, physical education equipment and other materials deemed as necessary tools of the teaching profession should be provided.
 - c. Space should be provided in each classroom in which teachers may safely store instructional materials and supplies.
 - d. That a teacher work area containing adequate equipment and supplies to aid in the preparation of instructional materials should be made available.
- Teachers will be informed as soon as possible as to the disposition of their requisitions for supplies, materials, and equipment by their principal.

ARTICLE VI Individual Contracts

- A. All individual contracts between the Board and individual teachers shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and any individual contract hereafter executed shall be expressly made subject to and consistent with terms of this or subsequent Agreements to be executed by the parties. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement, during its duration shall be controlling.
- B. All individual contracts will:

- 1. State the beginning and ending dates of contract.
- 2. Indicate the amount of salary to be paid.
- 3. Indicate whether the teacher is a probationary or tenure teacher.
- 4. Offer twenty-six (26) salary payments.
- 5. Teacher's salary calculation sheet shall be issued as soon as negotiations are complete. These will be returned within ten days following the issuance.
- 6. Contracts will be issued simultaneously to all teachers.
- 7. Contracts will be issued within 15 days after salary calculation sheets have been issued.
- 8. Contracts not returned, or returned unsigned, 15 calendar days following issuance, will indicate nonacceptance on the part of a teacher, and the position is
 automatically declared vacant. An applicant may then
 apply for the position. Teachers having tenure and intending not to return shall terminate their contracts
 in accordance with the tenure act to be considered for
 recommendation by this Board.
- C. Extra duties and the amount the teacher will be paid for each duty will be stipulated on a separate, nontenure, supplemental contract.

ARTICLE VII Leaves

A. Sick Leave

- 1. Ten days of sick leave will be granted each year accumulative to 75 days at full pay. The Board may request substantiation that leave has been taken for the intended purpose.
- Sick leave is basically an insurance and covers only illness, and disability, procedures. Routine health examinations, dental appointments, or surgical procedures which might appropriately be scheduled during vacation periods shall not be covered.
- 3. Sick leave shall be granted without loss of pay as follows.
 - a. Illness, injury, or unavoidable quarantine of teacher.

- 4. A statement will be presented to each teacher at the beginning of the school year showing accumulated leave.
- 5. If the employee terminates his service before the end of the contract term, a deduction will be made at the time the service terminates for all sick leave used in excess of leave earned.
- 6. Rights Saving Clause.

 Any teacher whose personal illness extends beyond the period compensated for shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for such time as is necessary for complete recovery from such illness. Verification of the personal physician shall be required in determination of a teacher's recovery from such illness before returning to their position.

B. Business Leave

1. Two days business leave shall be granted each year at full pay. This shall be noncumulative. If used it is to be deducted from sick leave. Approval of the Administration is not required for usage of this leave.

C. Involuntary Leave

1. A teacher called for jury duty or to give testimony before any judicial or administrative tribunal, shall be compensated for the difference between the teaching pay and the pay received for the performance of such obligations. If however, he is a witness in a suit in which he is personally involved he will receive no pay other than that provided for under Business Leave.

D. Military Leave

- 1. Teachers shall be granted temporary leave with pay for absence necesitated by required physical examination for military induction.
- 2. A leave of absence shall be granted a teacher who is recalled or inducted for one period of enlistment in any branch of the armed forces of the United States. Reinstatement upon completion of such service shall be in accordance with the requirements of the applicable law of the United States. Regular salary increments shall accrue.

B. Bereavement Leave

1. Teachers absent from duty because of the death of a member of their immediate family or a relative with whom they may at that time be living shall draw a regular salary not to exceed three days. These days are independent of all other leave days and are non-cumulative. Immediate family shall mean the teacher's or his spouse's mother, father, sister, brother, son, daughter, grandmother, grandfather or grandchildren.

F. Maternity Leave

- 1. The application for leave shall be filed not later than three months after pregnancy has been determined. The employee shall terminate her work not later than the end of the sixth month of pregnancy, or at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- 2. Such leave may be for a period of one full school year and may be renewed at the discretion of the Board for an additional school year.
- 3. To qualify for such leave the teacher must have been employed for a minimum of two consecutive school years.

G. Association Leave

1. Those who are regional or state officers of the Association or appointed to the regional or state staff should, upon proper application, be given leave of absence without pay for the purpose of performing duties for the Association. Teachers given such leave without pay shall be entitled to retain and accumulate such rights as if he had been continuously employed.

H. Professional Leave

1. Upon the approval of the Superintendent of Schools teachers will be granted leave without loss of pay to attend educational conferences, workshops, and visitations pertinent to the improvement of the school curriculum. Necessary expenses for such meetings will be paid by the Board of Education.

I. Extended Leaves

1. Sabbatical Leave

a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 572 of the Michigan School Code, sabbatical leaves may be granted by the Board of Education.

b. Requests for sabbatical leave must be submitted in writing to the Superintendent of Schools not later than May 1 of the school year preceding the school year for which the leave is requested. Preference in granting such leave will be based upon anticipated benefits to the School District.

ARTICLE VIII PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

A. Salary Schedule

The basic salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement are stated in Schedule marked Appendix A which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. This salary schedule shall remain in effect during the term of this Agreement.

B. Transfer of Credit

Teachers in the district shall receive no more than five (5) years credit for prior certified teaching experience. The provisions of this section are not retroactive and shall not apply to teachers hired prior to July 1, 1969.

C. Extra-Duty Assignments

- Payment for extra-duty assignments outside the normal load, will be paid according to the schedule marked Appendix B which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement.
- When a teacher's regular assignment extends beyond the normal school year, the additional time shall be compensated at a pro-rata share of the teacher's current basic salary.

ARTICLE IX PROFESSIONAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

- A. A claim by a teacher or the Association that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of any provision of this agreement may be processed as a grievance as hereinafter provided.
- B. The grievant may invoke the formal grievance procedure by submitting his grievance on a form designated for that purpose. This form shall be signed by the grievant and a representative of the Association. Said form shall be available from the Association representative. A copy of the grievance form shall be delivered to the principal.

- C. Within three (3) school days of receipt of the grievance, the principal shall meet with the Association representative in an effort to resolve the grievance. The principal shall indicate his disposition of the grievance in writing within three days of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association.
- D. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, or if no disposition has been made within three (3) school days of such meeting (or six school days from the date of filing, whichever shall be later) the grievance shall be transmitted to the Superintendent. Within five (5) school days the Superintendent or his designee shall meet with the Association on the grievance and shall indicate his disposition of the grievance in writing within three (3) days of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association.
- E. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Superintendent or his designee, or if no disposition has been made within three school days of such meeting (or eight school days from the date of filing, whichever shall be later) the grievance shall be transmitted to the Board by filing a written copy thereof with the Secretary or other designee of the Board. The Board, no later than its next regular meeting or two calendar weeks, whichever shall be later, may hold a hearing on the grievance, review such grievance in executive session, or give such other consideration as it shall deem appropriate. Disposition of the Grievance in writing by the Board shall be made no later than seven days thereafter. A copy of such disposition shall be furnished to the Association.
- F. In the event satisfactory disposition of a grievance is not obtained after pursuing all other procedures provided in the article, either the Association or the Board may request such mediation as is provided by law.
- G. If the decision of the Board is not satisfactory to the Association, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration before an impartial arbitrator selected by the parties. If the parties cannot agree as to the arbitrator, he shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accord with its rules which shall likewise govern the arbitration hearing. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of this Agreement.
- H. All costs associated with arbitration are to be shared equally by the Board and the Association.

- I. The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed but may be extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any year and strict adherence to the time limits may result in hardship to any party, the Board shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- J. If an individual teacher has a personal complaint which he desires to discuss with a principal, he is free to do so without recourse to the grievance procedure. However, no grievance shall be adjusted without prior notification to the Association and opportunity for an Association representative to be present, nor shall any adjustment of a grievance be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. In the administration of the grievance procedure, the interests of the teachers shall be the sole responsibility of the Association.
- K. All documents, communications, and records dealing with a grievance shall be filed separately from the personal files of the participants.
- L. It shall be the general practice of all parties to process grievance procedures during times which do not interfere with assigned duties; provided, however, in the event it is mutually agreed by the aggrieved person, the Association, and the Board to hold proceeding during regular working hours, a teacher participating in any level of the grievance procedure including mediation, on his own behalf or on behalf of the Association, with any representative of the Board, shall be released from assigned duties without loss of salary.

ARTICLE X DISCIPLINARY ACTION

A. A teacher shall at all times be entitled to have present a representative of the Association when he is being reprimanded, warned or disciplined for any infraction of discipline or delinquency in professional performance. When a request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the teacher until such representative of the Association is present. Such action shall take place within 5 working days of the request.

ARTICLE XI NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES

A. It is contemplated that terms and working conditions provided in this agreement shall remain in effect until altered by mutual agreement in writing between the parties. Nevertheless, because of the special nature of the public educational process, it is likewise recognized that matters may from time to time arise of vital mutual concern of the parties which have not been fully or adequately negotiated between them. It is in the public interest that the opportunity for mutual discussion of such matters be provided. The parties accordingly undertake to cooperate in arranging meetings, selecting representatives for discussion, furnishing necessary information and otherwise constructively considering and resolving any such matters.

- B. Not later than October 1 of the calendar year in which this agreement expires, the Board agree to begin negotiations with the Association over a successor agreement in accordance with the procedure set forth herein in a goodfaith effort to reach agreement concerning teachers' salaries and all other working conditions. Such negotiations may include, but not be limited to, the subjects covered by this Agreement and any other matters mutually agreed to be negotiable by the parties. Any agreement so negotiated will apply to all teachers, and will be reduced to writing and signed by the Board and the Association.
- C. Neither party in any negotiations shall have any control over the selection of the negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other party, and each party may select its representatives from within or outside the school district. While no final agreement shall be executed without ratification by the Association and the Board, the parties mutually pledge that their representatives will be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations.
- D. If the parties fail to reach an agreement in any such negotiations, either party may invoke the mediation machinery of the State Labor Mediation Board or take any other lawful measures it may deem appropriate.

ARTICLE XII AGREEMENT CONTRARY TO LAW AND MATTERS CONTRARY TO AGREEMENT

A. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement, to any employee or group of employees, shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect. B. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms. The provisions of this Agreement shall be incorporated into and be considered part of the established policies of the Board.

ARTICLE XIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. The provisions of this Agreement and the wages, hours, and working conditions shall be applied in a manner which is not arbitrary, capricious or discriminatory.
- B. Copies of this Agreement shall be printed by the Board and presented to all teachers employed or hereafter employed by the Board.
- C. The Association shall deal with ethical problems arising under the Code of Ethics of the Education Profession in accordance with the terms thereof and the Board recognizes that the Code of Ethics of the Education Profession is considered by the Association and its membership to define acceptable criteria of professional behavior.

ARTICLE XIV DEFINITIONS

- A. Wherever the term "Teacher" is used it is to include any member or members of the bargaining unit.
- B. Wherever the singular is used it is to include the plural.
- C. Wherever the term "Board" is used it shall mean the Board of Education of the Kingsley Area School District, and shall include its designee upon whom the Board has conferred authority to act in its place and stead.
- D. Wherever the term "Superintendent" is used it shall mean the Superintendent of Schools and shall include his designee upon whom the Superintendent has conferred authority to act in his place and stead.
- E. Wherever the term "Principal" is used it is to include the administrator of any work location or functional division or group.
- F. Wherever the term "this Agreement" is used it shall mean the Agreement itself, together with all Appendices incorporated therein by reference.
- G. Wherever the term "Association" is used it shall mean the

Kingsley Education Association and shall include its designee upon whom the Association has conferred authority to act in its place and stead.

H. Wherever the term "District" is used it shall mean the King-sley Area School District.

ARTICLE XV DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be effective as of the 1st day of July 1969 and shall continue in effect for one (1) year until the first day of July 1970. This Agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

FOR THE ASSOCIATION	FOR THE BOARD	
Ву	Ву	
President	President	
By	Ву	
Secretary	Secretary	
Ву	Ву	
Treasurer	Treasurer	
By	Ву	
Negotiator	Negotiator	

Appendix A

Kingsley Area School

1969-70 Salary Schedule

Step	BA Backerses I a BA	MA
0	\$6600	\$6900
1	6845	7145
2	7090	7390
3.	7335	7635
4	7580	7880
5	7825	8125
6	8070	8370
7	8315	8615
8	8560	8860
9	8805	9105
1.0	9050	9350

Appendix B

Kingsley Area School

Bxtra-Duty Schedule

Yearbook	\$200
Varsity Basketball	600
JV Basketball	400
Baseball	200
Track	200
Girl*s Basketball	300
Cheerleading	100
Cross-country	200
8th Grade Basketball	125
7th Grade Basketball	125
Varsity Football	600
Assistant Football	400
Freshman Basketball	125
Athletic Director	100
Band	10 per evening program (not concerts) and \$25 per day for week-end and summer programs.
Driver Education	\$4 per hour for behind the wheel \$4 per student for classroom

Appendix C

Kingsley Area School

Calendar

1969-70 School Year

August 28	Teachers meet
September 2	School in A.M. Teachers meet in P.M.
September 3	First full day
October 1	MEA Institute
November 27-28	Thanksgiving Vacation
December 23	Christmas Vacation begins at Noon
January 5	School resumes
January 21-22	Exems
January 23	No school-Grading
February 25	MEA Institute
March 27	Easter Vacation begins at Noon
April 6	School resumes
May 31	Baccalaureate
June 2-3	Exams
June 4	No schoolGrading
June 5	Students return to pick up cards
June 5	Commencement

Membership Days:

September	21
October	22
November	18
December	17
January	19
February	19
March	20
April	19
May	21
June	12
	essinatesquare.
Total	180